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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS  

GULF FINANCE COMPANY 

(A SAUDI CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY) 

 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
Opinion 

 

We have audited the financial statements of Gulf Finance Company (the “Company”), which comprise the statement 

of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income 

or loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial 

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 

of the Company as at 31 December 2020, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi 

Arabia, and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by the Saudi Organization for Chartered and Professional 

Accountants (“SOCPA”). 

  

Basis for opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of 

Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the code of professional conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our 

audit of the Company’s financial statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our opinion. 

 

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 

IFRS that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by SOCPA 

and Regulations for Companies and the Company’s Bylaws and for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance, i.e. the Board of Directors, are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 

  



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued) 

 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS  

GULF FINANCE COMPANY 

(A SAUDI CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY) 
 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 

International Standards on Auditing, that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 

or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 

of these financial statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi 

Arabia, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also; 

 Identify and asses the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Company’s internal control; 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 

related disclosures by the management; 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists, related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that the material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued) 

 
 

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS  

GULF FINANCE COMPANY 

(A SAUDI CLOSED JOINT STOCK COMPANY) 

 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 

Based on the information that has been made available to us, as disclosed in Note 9, the Company issued a loan 

amounting to SR 8 Million to its parent entity, Shuaa Capital PSC, registered in United Arab Emirates, which 

contravenes with the following regulations applicable to the Company: 

1. Article 73 of Regulation for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 

2. Article 12(a) of Finance Companies Control Law issued by Saudi Central Bank (“SAMA”) 
3. Article 56(4) of implementing regulations for Finance Companies Control Law issued by SAMA 

4. Article 58(2)(a) of implementing regulations for Finance Companies Control Law issued by SAMA 

 
 
 

For Al-Bassam & Co. 

Riyadh, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 
 

 

 

 

 

Ahmed Abdulmajeed Mohandis  

Certified Public Accountant 

License No. 477 

 

26 Shaban 1442H 

08 April 2021G 
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GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 
 

  As at 31 December 
 Note 2020 2019 

ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents 6 10,759,206 26,626,908 

Term deposits 7 33,039,331 - 

Prepayments and other receivables 8 1,164,382 1,623,332 

Due from a related party 9 8,348,882 5,876,476 

Assets repossessed held for sale 10 -   741,000 

Net investment in Islamic financing 11 188,127,000 167,423,899 

Restricted cash deposits 12 355,720 355,720 

Investment carried at FVOCI 13 892,850 892,850 

Property and equipment 14 104,374 137,928 

Intangible assets 15 80,000 783,605 

Right-of-use assets 16 98,741 164,568 

TOTAL ASSETS  242,970,486 204,626,286 

    
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
    

EQUITY    

Share capital 17 100,000,000 100,000,000 

Statutory reserve 18 994,257 994,257 

Accumulated losses  (7,933,496) (2,510,478) 

Actuarial reserve on End-of-service indemnities  457,878 532,397 

TOTAL EQUITY  93,518,639 99,016,176 

    

LIABILITIES    

Other payables and accruals 19 3,452,799 3,872,374 

Lease liabilities 16 102,009 166,585 

Due to related party 9 92,340 107,671 

Provision for zakat 20 476,502 1,045,050 

Financial facilities 21 143,667,099 99,268,837 

End-of-service indemnities  22 1,661,098 1,149,593 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  149,451,847 105,610,110 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  242,970,486 204,626,286 

Contingencies and commitments 23   

 
 

 
 
 
The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.  
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GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 

 Notes 2020 2019 

    

INCOME FROM ISLAMIC FINANCING, NET 24 19,788,090 15,562,862 

OPERATING (EXPENSES) / INCOME    

Finance cost 25 (2,563,370) (1,394,615) 

General and administrative expenses 26 (11,286,049) (12,923,240) 

(Impairment) / Reversal on Islamic financing    11.11 (912,369) 1,168,747 

Impairment on fair value measurement of assets repossessed held for sale 10 (741,000) (375,556) 

Other expense / income, net 27 (9,356,436) 2,223,834 

NET OPERATING (LOSS) / INCOME BEFORE ZAKAT  (5,071,134) 4,262,032 

Zakat 20 (351,884) (811,742) 

NET (LOSS) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (5,423,018) 3,450,290 
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GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) / INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Note 2020 2019 

    

NET (LOSS) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (5,423,018) 3,450,290 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME    

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:    

Actuarial (loss) / gain on End-of-service indemnities 22.3 (74,519) 229,475 

Total other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year  (74,519) 229,475 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR  (5,497,537) 3,679,765 



 

7 
| 

P
a

g
e

 

G
U

L
F

 F
IN

A
N

C
E

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
  

(A
 S

au
d

i C
lo

se
d

 J
oi

n
t 

St
oc

k
 C

om
pa

n
y)

  
S

T
A

T
E

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 C
H

A
N

G
E

S
 I

N
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

 
F

O
R

 T
H

E
 Y

E
A

R
 E

N
D

E
D

 3
1 

D
E

C
E

M
B

E
R

 2
02

0 
(A

ll
 a

m
ou

nt
s 

in
 S

au
d

i R
iy

al
s 

u
n

le
ss

 o
th

er
w

is
e 

st
at

ed
) 

 31
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
19

 
N

ot
e 

Sh
ar

e 
ca

p
it

al
 

St
at

u
to

ry
 

re
se

rv
e 

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 
lo

ss
es

 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 

re
se

rv
e 

on
 E

n
d-

of
-s

er
vi

ce
 

in
de

m
ni

ti
es

 

T
ot

al
 e

qu
it

y 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

9 
(A

ud
it

ed
) 

 
10

0,
00

0,
00

0 
67

6,
66

8 
(4

,9
05

,6
48

) 
- 

95
,7

71
,0

20
 

Im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 I
A

S
 1

9 
em

pl
oy

ee
 b

en
ef

it
s 

 
- 

- 
(7

37
,5

31
) 

30
2,

92
2 

(4
34

,6
09

) 
Im

pa
ct

 o
f 

ch
an

ge
 in

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

po
lic

y 
 

- 
(2

7,
44

0)
 

27
,4

40
 

- 
- 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

9 
 r

es
ta

te
d

 
 

10
0,

00
0,

00
0 

64
9,

22
8 

(5
,6

15
,7

39
) 

30
2,

92
2 

95
,3

36
,4

11
 

N
et

 in
co

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ye
ar

 
 

- 
- 

3,
45

0,
29

0 
- 

3,
45

0,
29

0 
O

th
er

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 in

co
m

e 
 

 
- 

- 
- 

22
9,

47
5 

22
9,

47
5 

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
to

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

es
er

ve
 

 
- 

34
5,

02
9 

(3
45

,0
29

) 
- 

- 
B

al
an

ce
 a

s 
at

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
9 

 
10

0,
00

0,
00

0 
99

4,
25

7 
(2

,5
10

,4
78

) 
53

2,
39

7 
99

,0
16

,1
76

 

 31
 D

ec
em

be
r 

20
20

 
N

ot
e 

Sh
ar

e 
ca

p
it

al
 

St
at

u
to

ry
 

re
se

rv
e 

A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 
lo

ss
es

 

A
ct

ua
ri

al
 r

es
er

ve
 o

n
 

E
nd

-o
f-

se
rv

ic
e 

in
de

m
ni

ti
es

 
T

ot
al

 e
qu

it
y 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 1

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

0 
17

,1
8 

10
0,

00
0,

00
0 

99
4,

25
7 

(2
,5

10
,4

78
) 

53
2,

39
7 

99
,0

16
,1

76
 

N
et

 lo
ss

 f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

 
 

- 
- 

(5
,4

23
,0

18
) 

- 
(5

,4
23

,0
18

) 
O

th
er

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 lo

ss
  

22
.3

 
- 

- 
- 

(7
4,

51
9)

 
(7

4,
51

9)
 

B
al

an
ce

 a
s 

at
 3

1 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
02

0 
 

10
0,

00
0,

00
0 

99
4,

25
7 

(7
,9

33
,4

96
) 

 
45

7,
87

8 
93

,5
18

,6
39

  

     T
he

 a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
no

te
s 

1 
to

 3
3 

fo
rm

 a
n 

in
te

gr
al

 p
ar

t o
f 

th
es

e 
fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ta
te

m
en

ts
.



 

8 | P a g e  

GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 

    
 Notes 2020 2019 
    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Net Operating (loss) / income before zakat  (5,071,134)  4,262,032 
Adjustments for:    
Depreciation of right of use assets 16.1 65,827 32,913 
-Depreciation of property and equipment 14 40,424 189,590 
Amortization of intangible assets 15 803,605 1,079,798 
Finance cost 25 2,563,370 1,394,615 
Impairment / (Reversal) on Islamic financing 11.12 912,369 (1,168,747) 
Write off of property and equipment 27 - 401,465 
Impairment on fair value measurement of assets repossessed held for sale 10 741,000 375,556 

Provision for operational loss 26 266,910 - 
Provision for End-of-service indemnities 22 409,232 428,397 
Modification loss on financial assets 27 16,244,645 - 
Loss on the fair valuation of initial recognition of financial assets 27 1,548,290 - 
Government grant on SAMA liquidity support 27 (995,696) - 
Government grant on SAMA funding for lending program 27 (1,819,795) - 
Modification gain on financial liabilities 27 (2,935,807) - 
Accrued Income on Term Deposits 7 (39,331) - 

    
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets    
Prepayments and other receivables  192,040 601,342 
Due from a related party  (2,472,406) (5,876,476) 
Net investment in Islamic financing  (39,408,405) (30,209,545) 
Restricted cash deposit  -   (25,720) 
    
(Decrease)/increase in operating liabilities    
Other payables and accruals  (419,575) 1,495,946 
Due to related party  (15,331) (7,166,407) 

Cash used in operating activities  (29,389,768)  (34,185,241) 
Zakat paid 20 (920,432) (420,811) 
End-of-service indemnities paid 22.4 (17,500) (320,567) 
Net cash used in operating activities  (30,327,700)  (34,926,619) 
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    
Purchase of property and equipment 14 (6,870) (144,660) 
Purchase of Term Deposits 7 (33,000,000) - 
Purchase of intangible assets 15 (100,000) (244,727) 

Net cash used in investing activities  (33,106,870) (389,387) 
    

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from financial facilities  58,676,509 82,856,704 
Repayment of financial facilities  (9,962,264) (28,930,951) 
Finance cost paid  (1,077,377) (1,451,458) 
Lease liabilities paid 16.1 (70,000) (35,000) 

Net cash generated from financing activities  47,566,868 52,439,295 

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents  (15,867,702) 17,123,289 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6 26,626,908 9,503,619 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 6 10,759,206  26,626,908 

The accompanying notes 1 to 33 form an integral part of these financial statements.



 
 
 
GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS 

Gulf Finance Company ("the Company") is a Saudi closed Joint-Stock Company formed under the laws of the Kingdom 
of Saudi Arabia and registered under the commercial register under No. 7013624916 on 28 Dhul Qa'adah 1433H 
(corresponding to 14 October 2012). On 26 Sha'ban 1435H (corresponding to 24 September 2014), the shareholders 
resolved to convert the legal status of the Company from a limited liability company to a Closed Joint-Stock Company and 
obtained the necessary approval from the Ministry of Commerce & Investment (MOCI) and the Notary Public. 
 
On 15 December 2013 and in accordance with article 6 of the implementing regulations of the law of supervision of finance 
companies, the Company submitted its application to the Saudi Central Bank (SAMA) to obtain its license as a financing 
company. On 3 Jumada al-Akhirah 1435H (corresponding to 3 April 2014), the Company obtained the preliminary approval 
on the license from SAMA. On 16 Safar 1436H (corresponding to 8 December 2014) the Company obtained the license 
from SAMA to engage in the finance lease activities. The principal of activities of the Company includes financial lease, 
financing production assets to Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs). 
 

 
Gulf Finance Company 
Al Hokair Holding Group Building, 
Ground Floor, North Ring Road, Al Murooj Area 
P.O. Box 240249 
Riyadh 11322 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia  

registration of the Company include:  
(a) Wholesale and retail trade in cars and vehicles, trucks, tankers and heavy equipment, electrical and electronic devices 
and its spare parts in cash and installment; and  
 
(b) Purchase of land for the construction of buildings and the investment of these buildings by selling or leasing them for 
the benefit of the Company provided that the real estate shall be outside the boundaries of Makkah and Madinah.  
 
The Company has the following branches  
 

S. No Branch C.R. No. Date 

1 Riyadh 7013624916  26 Jumada Al-Awwal 1434H 
2 Jeddah 7001738363 21 Ramadan 1439H 
3 Dammam* 2050091775 12 Rajab 1434H 

 
*The commercial registration of the branch has been expired. As of 31 December 2020, the Company is in under process 
of cancellation of these commercial registrations 
 
 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 
 

2.1.  STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 
 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards that are 
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements endorsed by the Saudi Organization 
for Chartered and  Professional  IFRS . 

Assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position are presented in the order of liquidity. 
 
  



 
 
 
GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 
 

2.2. BASIS OF MEASUREMENT 
These financial statements are prepared under the historical cost except for the following: 
a) End of service indemnities are recognized at the present value of future obligations using the Projected Unit Credit 

Method; 
b) Investment in Equity Instruments are measured at fair value; and 
c) Assets repossessed held for sale measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.         
 

2.3. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY 
These financial statements have been presented in Saudi Riyals (SR) which is the Company's functional and presentation 
currency. All financial information presented in SR has been rounded to the nearest SR unless otherwise mentioned. 

2.4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 
The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with the IFRS which require management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments about the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates is 
recognized in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of the revision 
and future years if the revision affects both current and future years. 
 

olicies, management has made the following estimates and 
judgments which are significant to the financial statements: 

2.4.1. IMPACT OF COVID-  
 

-  as a 
pandemic in recognition of its rapid spread across the globe. This outbreak has also affected the GCC region including the 
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia. Governments all over the world took steps to contain the spread of the virus. Saudi Arabia, in 
particular, has implemented closure of borders, released social distancing guidelines and enforced countrywide lockdowns 
and curfews.  
 
Oil prices have also witnessed significant volatility during the current period, owing not just to demand issues arising from 
COVID-19 as the world economies go into lockdown, but also supply issues driven by volume which had predated the 
pandemic. The economic impacts of the above events, though the scale and duration of which remains uncertain, primarily 
include: 

 Significant business interruption arising from hindrance in generating new originations travel 
 restrictions and unavailability of personnel etc.; 
 Deterioration in the creditworthiness of customers in particular to those working or 

 
 A significant increase in economic uncertainty, evidenced by more volatile asset prices and currency exchange 

rates, and a general decline in interest rates globally. 
 

Collectively, these current events and the prevailing conditions require the Company to analyze the likely impact of these 
operations. The Company has adjusted the macroeconomic factors in the ECL model 

on the basis of the available data in December 31, 2020. The Board of Directors and the management of the Company have 
evaluated the current situation and accordingly, have activated its business continuity planning and other risk management 
practices to manage the potential business disruption COVID-19 outbreak may have on its operations and financial 
performance. Under the current situation, the scale and duration of this outbreak and its impact on credit, market and 
operational risks remain  
 
 



 
 
 
GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 
 

2.4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
uncertain and the Board of Directors and management of the Company are continuously evaluating the evolving situation 
in liaison with the regulatory authorities and the related further quantification of impact cannot be ascertained at this point. 

2.4.2. Determination of discount rate for present value calculations  
Discount rate represents the current market assessment of the risks specific to the Company, taking into consideration the 
tenure of the agreement and the individual risks of the underlying assets. The discount rate calculation is based on the 
specific circumstances of the Company. 

2.4.3. Actuarial -employment benefits 
The cost of the post-employment benefits ("employee benefits") under the defined benefit plan is determined using the 
projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual 
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates 
and rate of employee turnover. Due to the complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation 
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed on an annual basis or more frequently if 
required. 
 

2.4.4. Useful lives of property and equipment 
The Company's management determines the estimated useful lives of its property and equipment for calculating 
depreciation. This estimate is determined after considering the expected usage of the asset or physical wear and tear. 
Management reviews the residual value and useful lives annually and future depreciation charges would be adjusted where 
the management believes the useful lives differ from previous estimates. 
 
 

2.4.5. Business model assessment 
Classification and measurement of financial assets depend on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. The 
Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to 
achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how 
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the 
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors financial 
assets measured at amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognized prior to their 
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business 
for 
for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has 
been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets. No such changes were 
required during the periods presented. 
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 
 

2.4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

2.4.6. Significant increase in credit risk 
In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the 
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a default 
occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Company considers 
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and 
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered 

reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks, and other similar organizations, as well as 

operations. 
 

2.4.7. Fair value measurement and valuation process 
Certain 
management is responsible to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.  

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. 
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The 
management works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs 
to the model. 

3. IMPACT OF CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES DUE TO ADOPTION OF NEW STANDARDS 

a) Government Grant 
Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions 
attaching to them and that the grants will be received. Government grants are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
(loss) / income on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognizes the related costs for which the 
grants are intended to compensate. 
 
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving 
immediate financial support to the Company with no future related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in 
which they become receivable. The benefit of a government loan at a below-market rate of profit is treated as a government 
grant, measured as the difference between proceeds received and the fair value of the financing based on prevailing market 
profit rates. 
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4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE 
 
Amendments  

A number of new amendments to standards, enlisted below, are effective this year but they do not have a material effect 
 

 
New amendments to standards issued and applied effective January 1, 2020  
 

 
 

Amendments to 
standard 

Description 
Effective for annual 
years beginning on 

or after 
Summary of the amendment 

IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of material January 1, 2020 

The amendments provided a new definition of 
material and clarified that materiality will depend 
on the nature or magnitude of information, either 
individually or in combination with other 
information, in the context of the financial 
statements. 

IFRS 3 Definition of business January 1, 2020 

The amendment clarifies that to be considered a 
business, an integrated set of activities and assets 
must include, at a minimum, an input and a 
substantive process that, together, significantly 
contribute to the ability to create output. 
Furthermore, it clarifies that a business can exist 
without including all of the inputs and processes 
needed to create outputs. 

Revised 
Conceptual 
Framework for 
Financial 
Reporting 

Amendments to references 
Conceptual Framework in 
IFRS Standards and updated 
definitions and recognition 
criteria for assets and liabilities 
and clarifies some important 
concepts. 

January 1, 2020 

The revised Conceptual Framework includes some 
new concepts, updated definitions and recognition 
criteria for assets and liabilities and clarifies some 
important concepts. 

IFRS 9, IAS 39 
and IFRS 7 

Interest Rate Benchmark 
Reform 

January 1, 2020 

A fundamental review and reform of major interest 
rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally. The 
International Accounting Standards Board 

-phase process of 
amending its guidance to assist in a smoother 
transition away from IBOR. 

IFRS 16 
COVID-19-Related  
Rent Concessions 

June 1, 2020 

The amendments provide relief to lessees from 
applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification 
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct 
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. The 
amendment applies to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 and earlier 
application is permitted.  



 
 
 
GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 

14 | P a g e  
 

 
 

4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE 
(Continued) 

 
New standards, amendments and revised IFRS issued but not yet effective   
 
The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs and amendments to IFRS that have been issued but 
are not yet effective. 

Amendments to 
standard  

Description 
  

Effective for annual 
years beginning on 

or after  

Summary of the amendment 
 
 

IFRS 9, IAS 39, 
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 
and IFRS 16 

Interest Rate Benchmark 
Reform  Phase 2 

January 1, 2021 

 
These amendments modify specific hedge accounting 
requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for 
affected hedges during the period of uncertainty before 
the hedged items or hedging instruments affected by 
the current interest rate benchmarks are amended as a 
result of the on-going interest rate benchmark reforms. 
The amendments also introduce new disclosure 
requirements to IFRS 7 for hedging relationships that 
are subject to the exceptions introduced by the 
amendments to IFRS 9. 

IAS 37 
Onerous Contracts  
Cost of Fulfilling a 
Contract 

January 1, 2022 

 

contract. These amendments apply to contracts for 
which the entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations 
at the beginning of the annual reporting period in 
which the entity first applies the amendments. 

IFRS 16, IFRS 9, 
IAS 41 and IFRS 
1 

Annual Improvements to 
IFRS Standards 2018
2020 

January 1, 2022 

 
IFRS 16: The amendment removes the illustration of 
the reimbursement of leasehold improvements 
IFRS 9: The amendment clarifies that in applying the 

financial liability, an entity includes only fees paid or 
received between the entity (the borrower) and the 
lender. The amendment is to be applied prospectively 
to modifications and exchanges that occur on or after 
the date the entity first applies the amendment. 
IAS 41: The amendment removes the requirement in 
IAS 41 for entities to exclude cash flows for taxation 
when measuring fair value. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IFRS 1: The amendment provides additional relief to a 
subsidiary which becomes a first-time adopter later 
than its parent in respect of accounting for cumulative 
translation difference. 
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4. NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE 
(Continued) 

New standards, amendments and revised IFRS issued but not yet effective  (continued) 
 
The Company has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs and amendments to IFRS that have been issued but 
are not yet effective. 

 

financial statements as and when they are applicable and adoption of these interpretations and amendments may not result 
in material impact on the financial statements of the Company in the period of initial application. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Amendments to 
standard  

Description 
  

Effective for 
annual years 

beginning on or 
after  

Summary of the amendment 
 
 

IAS 16 

Property, Plant and 
Equipment: 
Proceeds before 
Intended Use 

January 1, 2022 

 
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of 
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds 
from selling items produced before that asset is 
available for use. Additionally, the amendments also 

 

IFRS 3 
Reference to the 
Conceptual 
Framework 

January 1, 2022 

 
The amendment as a whole updated IFRS 3 so that it 
refers to the 2018 Conceptual Framework instead of 
the 1989 Framework. 

IAS 1 

Classification of 
Liabilities as 
Current or Non-
current 

January 1, 2023 

 
The amendment has clarified what is meant by a right 
to defer settlement, that a right to defer must exist at 
the end of the reporting period, that classification is 
unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise 
its deferral right and that only if an embedded 
derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity 
instrument the terms of a liability would not impact its 
classification 

Amendment to IFRS 
10 and IAS 28 

Sale or Contribution 
of Assets between 
an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint 
Venture 

   N/A 

 
The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 deal with 
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets 
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. 
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses 
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary. 
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

Significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set forth below. These 
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all years presented, except as disclosed under Note 3. 
 

5.1. Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents may include cash in hand and at banks and other short-term highly liquid investments, with 
original maturities of three months or less from the purchase date, if any. 

5.2. Leases 
 

Lease arrangements where the Company is a lessor 
Leases for which the Company is a lessor are classified as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All 
other leases are classified as operating leases. 

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized 
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of 

 

Ijara receivables  
Ijara finance is an agreement wherein gross amounts due under originated Ijara (finance) includes the total of future 
payments on Ijara finance, plus estimated residual amounts receivable (by an option to purchase the asset at the end of the 
respective financing term through an independent sale contract). The difference between the ijara contracts receivable and 
the cost of the ijara assets is recorded as unearned Ijara finance income and for presentation purposes, is deducted from the 
gross amounts due under Ijara finance. 
  
Lease arrangements where the Company is a lessee 
The Company leases buildings for branches. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 1 year to 4 years but 
may have extension options. The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract.  
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease 
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for financing purposes. The 
Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which 
it is the lessee each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance costs. The finance cost is charged to profit 
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability 
for each period, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low 
value assets (such as tablets and personal computers, small items of office furniture and telephones). For these leases, the 
Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless 
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased assets are 
consumed. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the 
Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. 
 
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net 
present value of the following lease payments: 
 

 fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable; 
 variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the commencement 

date; 
 The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; 
 the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options; and 
 payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease. 

 
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:   
 the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; 
 any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received; 
 any initial direct costs, and; 
 restoration costs.  
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
5.2. Leases (Continued) 

 
Lease arrangements where the Company is a lessee (Continued) 
Extension and termination options are included in a number of property leases across the Company. These terms are used 
to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and termination options held 
are exercisable only by the Company and not by the respective lessor. 

To optimize lease costs during the contract period, the Company sometimes provides residual value guarantees in relation 
to equipment leases. 
 
The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. 
 
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability 
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. 
 
The Company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) 
whenever: 
 

 The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the assessment 
of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments 
using a revised discount rate. 
 

 The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual 
value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using an unchanged 
discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount 
rate is used). 
 

 A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease 
liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using a 
revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification. 
 
The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented. 
 
The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or 
before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently 
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
 
Whenever the Company incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it 
is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a provision is 
recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the costs are included in 
the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. 
 
Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the right-of-use asset. If a lease 
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise 
a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation 
starts at the commencement date of the lease. 
 
The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the statement of financial position. 
 
The Company applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified 
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

5.2. Leases (Continued) 
 
Lease arrangements where the Company is a lessee (Continued) 

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account for any lease 
and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has not used this practical expedient. For a 
contract that contain a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Company allocates 
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease 
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 
 

5.3. Financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument. 

5.3.1. Financial Asset 
 

Initial measurement 
At initial recognition, the Company recognizes the financial asset at its fair value. 
 

Murabaha receivables  
Murabaha is an agreement whereby the Company sells to a customer an asset, which the Company has purchased and 
acquired based on a promise received from the customer to buy. The selling price comprises the cost plus an agreed profit 
margin. Gross amounts due under the Murabaha sale contracts include the total of future sale price payments on the 
Murabaha agreement (Murabaha sale contract receivable). The difference between the Murabaha sale contracts receivable 
and the cost of the sold asset is recorded as unearned Murabaha profit and for presentation purposes, is deducted from the 
gross amounts due under the Murabaha sale contracts receivable.  
 

Subsequent measurement 
After initial recognition financial assets can be measured at Amortized cost, Fair value through other comprehensive 

 
 

a) Financial Asset at amortized cost 
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at 
FVTPL: 
 

 the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

 the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and profit on the principal amount outstanding. 
 

b) Financial asset at FVOCI 
 

Debt Instruments 
A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as FVTPL: 
- the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting the contractual cash flows 

and selling financial assets, and 
- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.   
 

Equity Instruments 
On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present 
subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
5.3.    Financial instruments (Continued) 
 
5.3.1. Financial assets (Continued) 

 
c) Financial Asset at FVTPL 

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. 

In addition, on initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an 
accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the year after the Company changes 
its business model for managing financial assets. 
 
Business model assessment 
The Company assesses the objective of a business model in which an asset is held at a portfolio level because this best 
reflects the way the business is managed and the information is provided to management. The information considered 
includes: 
 the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular, whether 

management's strategy focuses on earning a contractual profit, maintaining a particular profit rate profile, matching 
the duration of the financial assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realizing cash flows 
through the sale of the assets; 

 how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Comp  
 the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) 

and how those risks are managed; 
 how managers of the business are compensated- e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets 

managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 
 the frequency, volume and timing of financings in prior years, the reasons for such financings and its expectations 

about future financing activities. However, information about financing activity is not considered in isolation, but as 

how cash flows are realized. 
 
The business model assessment is based on 
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is different from the Company's 
original expectations, the Company does not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business 
model but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going 
forward. 
 
Financial assets that are held for trading and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL 
because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell 
financial assets. 
 

Assessments whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and profit 
For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. 'Profit' is the 
consideration for the time value of money, the credit and other basic financing risks associated with the principal amount 
outstanding during a particular year and other basic financing costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), along 
with profit margin. 
  
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and profit, the Company considers the 
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that 
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the 
assessment, the Company considers:  
 contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows; 
 leverage features; 
 prepayment and extension terms; 
 flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse asset arrangements); 

and 
 features that modify consideration of the time value of money- e.g., periodical reset of profit rates. 
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
5.3.    Financial instruments (Continued) 
 
5.3.1. Financial assets (Continued) 

 
De-recognition of financial assets 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, 
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
De-recognition of financial asset 
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between: 

 the carrying amount (measured at the date of derecognition) and 

 the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) 
is recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Modification  
When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified and the renegotiation or 
modification does not result in the derecognition of that financial asset, The Company recalculates the gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset and recognize a modification gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. The gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset is recalculated as the present value of the renegotiated or modified contractual cash flows that 
are discounted at the 
or originated credit-impaired financial assets) or, when applicable, the revised effective interest rate. Any costs or fees 
incurred adjust the carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are amortized over the remaining term of the 
modified financial asset.  
 
Reclassification 
Financial assets are reclassified when the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. For example, 

not reclassified.  
 
Impairment  
The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses associated with its financial assets. The 
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.  
 
For net investment in Islamic financing, the Company applies the three-
based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition.  
 
Stage 1 includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or that 
have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12- recognized and 
interest revenue is calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset (that is, without deduction for credit allowance). 
12-month ECL is the ECL that result from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. It is 
not the expected cash shortfalls over the 12-month period but the entire credit loss on an asset, weighted by the probability 
that the loss will occur in the next 12 months.  
 
Stage 2 includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition unless they 
have low credit risk at the reporting date, but that does not have objective evidence of impairment. For these assets, lifetime 
ECL is recognized, but interest revenue is still calculated on the gross carrying amount of the asset. Lifetime ECL is the 
ECL that result from all possible default events over the maximum contractual period during which the Company is exposed 
to credit risk. ECL is the weighted average credit losses, with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.  
 
Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these assets, lifetime 
ECL is recognized and interest revenue is calculated on the net carrying amount (that is, net of credit allowance).  
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

5.3. Financial instruments (Continued) 
 
5.3.1. Financial assets (Continued) 

 
Impairment 
The Company, when determining whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly, considers 
reasonable and supportable information available, in order to compare the risk of a default occurring at the reporting date 
with the risk of a default occurring at initial recognition of the financial instrument. Other instruments are considered as 
low risk and the Company uses a provision matrix in calculating the expected credit losses.  
 
Measurement of ECL 
ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows: 
 
 financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the 

difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company 
expects to receive); and 

 financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the gross carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows. 

 
Credit-impaired financial assets 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit-impaired. A 
financial asset is 'credit-impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash 
flows of the financial asset have occurred. 
 
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data: 
 
 the significant financial difficulty of the customer or issuer; 
 a breach of contracts such as a default or past due event; 
 the restructuring of financing or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; 
 it is becoming probable that the customer will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 
 the disappearance of an active market for security because of financial difficulties. 

 
-

impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there 
are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, financing that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-
impaired. 
 
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position 
Loss allowances for ECL, for financial assets measured at amortized cost, are presented in the statement of financial 
position as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets. 
 
Write-off 
Financial assets are written off only when:  
(I) there is a recommendation by the collections department and approved by management and board members as per the 
policy, and  
(ii) there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.  
 

Where financial assets are written off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activities to attempt to recover the 
lease receivable due. Where recoveries are made, after write-off, are recognized as other income in the statement of 
comprehensive income. 
 
Regular way contracts 
All regular way purchase and sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on the trade date i.e., the date on 
which the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets. Regular way purchase or sales of financial assets require 
delivery of those assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. 
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

5.3. Financial instruments (Continued) 
 

5.3.2. Financial Liabilities 
 
Classification of financial liabilities  
The Company designates a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency or where a group of financial liabilities is managed and its performance 
is evaluated on a fair value basis.  
 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the year which are 
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 12 months of recognition. Trade and other payables are 
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.  
6.  

Initial measurement  
At initial recognition, the Company recognizes the financial liability at its fair value. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate 
method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as 
through the amortization process. 
 
De-recognition of financial liabilities 
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligations specified in the contract is discharged, canceled or expires. A 
substantial change in the terms of a debt instrument is considered as an extinguishment of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new financial liability. If an exchange of debt instruments or modification of terms is accounted for as an 
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognized as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment.  
 

Modification  
For financial liabilities, if an exchange or change in the terms of a debt instrument does not qualify for de-recognition it is 
accounted for as a modification of the financial liability. If the exchange or modification is not accounted for as an 
 
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability and are amortized over the remaining 
term of the modified liability. 
 
Offsetting financial assets and liabilities  
Financial assets and liabilities are offset so that the net amount reported in the statement of financial position where the 
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on 
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy 
of the Company or the counterparty. 
 

5.3.3. Effective interest method 
 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of financial asset and liability and of allocating 
interest income and expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction 
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter 
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
 

5.4. Assets repossessed held for sale 
The Company in the ordinary course of its business acquires certain assets against the settlement of Islamic financings. 
Such assets are considered as assets held for sale and are initially recorded at the lower of carrying amount of related 
Islamic financings or the fair value of the related assets, less any cost to sell. 
  
Subsequent to the initial recognition, these assets owned are periodically revalued and are carried at lower of their carrying 
values or the amount fair value less cost to sell. Rental income if any, realized gain or losses on disposal and unrealized 
losses on evaluation are credited or charged to the statement of Profit or Loss. 
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

5.4 Assets repossessed held for sale (Continued) 
 
A loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is recognized 
for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative loss previously 
recognized.  
 
A gain or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale of the repossessed asset is recognized at the date of 
derecognition. 
 
Assets repossessed are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale. 
 
Assets repossessed classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the statement of Financial 
Position. 
 

5.5. Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment if any. Historical cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.  
 

rying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when 
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the reporting period in 
which they are incurred.  
 
Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the applicable assets using the straight-line method. The 
estimated useful lives of the principal classes of assets are as follows: 

 
 

Years 

Computers and office equipment 3 
Furniture and fixture 3 
Motor vehicle 4 

 

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use. 
 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
Gains/losses on disposal of property and equipment, if any, are taken to the profit and loss account in the year in which 
they arise. 
 

od. 
 

 
5.6. Intangible assets 

Costs associated with maintaining software programs are recognized as an expense as incurred. Development costs that are 
directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company are 
recognized as intangible assets when the following criteria are met: 

 it is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use; 
 management intends to complete the software and use or sell it; 
 there is an ability to use or sell the software; 
 it can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits; 
 adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software are 

available, and 
 the expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured. 
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

5.6. Intangible assets (Continued) 
 
Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software include employee costs and an appropriate portion of 
relevant overheads. 
 

Capitalized development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortized from the point at which the asset is ready 
for use. 
 

Intangible assets having definite lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses 
if any. Amortization is charged applying the straight-line method over the useful lives of 3 - 5 years.  
 
Amortization is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use. The residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporting date. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can 
be measured reliably 

5.7. Impairment of non-financial assets 
At each statement of financial position date, the carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed regularly to 
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, 
the recoverable amount of the assets is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Where it is not 
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the assets or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is recognized as an 
expense in the statement of profit or loss immediately. 
 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to 
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the assets or cash-generating unit in 
prior year. The reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss immediately. 
 

5.8. Share capital  

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the definition 
 

5.9. Statutory reserves 

By-laws and the Regulations for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, the Company 
is required to recognize a reserve comprising 10% of its Net Income for the year. As per its By-laws, the Company will 
cease the contribution when such reserve will reach 30% of its Share Capital. 

5.10. Trade payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year 
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment 
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. 
 

5.11. Provisions 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 
is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. 
 

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at 
the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured 
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
Provisions (Continued) 
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation to its carrying amount is the present value of those cash 
flows. 
 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, 
the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the 
receivable can be measured reliably. 
 

5.12. Zakat 
Zakat is provided in accordance with the Regulations of the General Authority of Zakat and Tax (GAZT) in the Kingdom 
of Saudi Arabia and on the accrual basis. Zakat charge for the year is charged directly to the statement of profit or loss with 
a corresponding liability recognized in the statement of financial position. Differences, if any, resulting from the final 
assessments are adjusted in the year of their finalization, refer note 3. 
 

5.13. Financial facilities 
Financial facilities are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Financial facilities are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption amount is recognized in the statement of profit or loss of the period of the financial facilities using the effective 
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent 
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the drawdown 
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is 
capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates. 
 

Financial facilities are removed from the statement of financial position when the obligation specified in the contract is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or 
liabilities assumed, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as other income or finance costs. 
 

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish 
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, which is measured as the 
 
Difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued. 
 

Financial facilities are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 
 

5.14. End of service indemnities 
This represents the end of service indemnities. End of service indemnities as required by the Saudi Arabian Labour Law 

benefit plans (Post- e amount of future benefit that 
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior years; that benefit is discounted to determine its 
present value and any unrecognized past service costs. The discount rate used is the market yield on government Sukuk at 
the reporting date that has 
benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit method to determine the Com
present value of the obligation. 
 
The defined benefit liability comprises the present value of defined benefit obligation as adjusted for any past service cost 
not yet recognized and any unrecognized actuarial gains/losses. Currently, there are no past service costs. There are also 
no unrecognized re-measurement gains and losses as the entire re-measurement gains and losses are recognized as income 
or expense in other comprehensive income during the year in which they arise. 
 

5.15. Contingent liabilities 
The Company receives legal claims through its normal cycle. Management has to make estimates and judgments about the 
possibility to set aside a provision to meet claims. The end of the legal claims date and the amount to be paid is uncertain. 
The timing and costs of legal claims depend on statutory procedures.  
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 

5.16. Revenue recognition - Finance lease and other operating income 
(i) Income from finance lease 

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, 
except for: 
a)  Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, for which the original credit-adjusted effective 
interest rate is applied to the amortized cost of the financial asset. 

 
b)  Financial assets that are not 'POCI' but have subsequently become credit-impaired (or 'stage 3'), for which interest 
revenue is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to their amortized cost (i.e., net of the expected credit loss)  

(ii) Processing fee  
Processing fees and other operating income represent administration fees which include leases initiation and customer 
risk assessment. Processing fee income is recognized over the period of the lease using the effective rate method, 
which results in a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding. 

 
Other operating income is recorded as when incurred. 
 

5.17. Proposed dividend and transfer between reserves 
Dividends and appropriations to reserves, except appropriations which are required by law, made subsequent to the 
balance sheet date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recorded in the financial statements in accordance with 

 
made. 

5.18. Onerous contracts 
Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognized and measured as provisions. An onerous contract is 
considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under 
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. 
 

5.19. Foreign currency transactions 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into Saudi Riyals at exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction and 
the resulting gain/loss recognized in the statement of profit or loss Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are 
translated at the rates of exchange that are prevailing on the statement of financial position date. Gains and losses on 
translation are taken to the statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in 
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fair value was 
determined. 
 

5.20. General and Administrative expenses and Selling and marketing expenses 
Selling and marketing expenses principally comprised of costs incurred in the sale and marke
products/services. All other expenses are classified as general and administrative expenses. 
 

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
  As at 31 December 
 Note 2020 2019 
    
Cash at bank 6.1 10,756,206 26,623,908 
Cash in hand  3,000 3,000 
  10,759,206 26,626,908 

 
6.1.     The Company does not earn profit 

and principles. 
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7. TERM DEPOSITS 

 
The Company has placed these term deposits with local banks having maturities of 9  12 months. These deposits earn a 
profit at 1%. These investments are carried at amortized cost.      

 As at 31 December 

 2020 2019 

Term deposits 33,000,000 -   

Accrued profit term deposits 39,331 -   

 33,039,331 -   

 
8. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 As at 31 December  
 2020 2019 
Prepaid office rent 488,039 486,111 
Prepaid kafala fee 289,375 346,645 
Prepaid insurance 8,610 201,055 
Other prepayments 312,394 442,714 
Advance to employees - 3,150 
Other receivables 65,964 143,657 
 1,164,382 1,623,332 

 

9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES  
Transactions during the year  

Names of 
Related Parties 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Nature of transactions Note 2020 2019 

Shuaa Capital 
PSC  UAE 
 

Shareholder  

 
 

Allocation of software and 
related cost 

26 -   (184,068) 

 
 

Allocation of other operating 
expenses 

 (64,466) -   

 
 

Expenses charged by Gulf 
Finance Company in relation 
to collection of sold portfolio 

 -   438,065 

  Finance income 27 763,155   681,886 
 

 
Collection against disposed-
off financing portfolio 

 (30,000) (1,949,054) 

  Short term financing 9.1 -   8,000,000 

 
 

Commission on collection 
from customers 

 87,538 -   

  Payments to Parent Company   1,716,179 -   
Gulf Finance 
Company PJSC  
UAE 

Shareholder 
Allocation of software and 
related cost 

26 (39,443) (640,648) 

  Allocation of support services 
relating to IT software 

 
(408,392) (372,533) 

  Repayment by Gulf Finance 
Company 

 
463,166 1,569,235 
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 
 

Transactions during the year  

Second Coast Company 
for Commercial Hotels 

Affiliate 

Net finance provided under 
Islamic Financing 

9.2 -   - 

Profit earned  527,090 944,722 
Profit received  (773,126) (475,000) 
Modification loss  (223,686) - 
Repayment by the related 
party 

 (1,726,874) - 

Fifth Coast Company 
for Commercial Hotels 

Affiliate 

Net finance provided under 
Islamic Financing 

9.2 
 

-   9,000,000 

Profit earned  415,886 461,250 
Profit received  -   (126,903) 
Repayment by the related 
party 

 -   (9,500,000) 

Modification loss  (341,755) - 
Purchase of leased asset  -   9,000,000 
Repayment by Gulf Finance 
Company 

 -   (14,500,000) 

First Sabeel Hotels 
Company 

Affiliate 

Net finance provided under 
Islamic Financing 

9.2 -   9,100,000 

Profit earned  955,695 482,014 
Repayment by the related 
party 

 (1,500,000) - 

Modification loss  (519,468) - 
Profit received  (150,000) (100,708) 
Purchase of leased asset  -   7,600,000 
Repayment by Gulf Finance 
Company 

 -   (7,600,000) 

Raibat Al Yasmin 
Company for Real 
Estate Investment and 
Development 

Affiliate 

Net finance provided under 
Islamic Financing 

9.2 -   9,500,000 

Modification loss  (369,877) - 
Profit earned  979,214 412,181 
Profit received  -   (235,375) 
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

 

Transactions during the year  

Names of 
Related Party 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Nature of transactions Note 2020 2019 

Shuaa Cayan City 
Lights for 
Development & 
Real Estate 
Investment 
Company 

Affiliate 

Net finance provided under 
Islamic Financing 

9.2 700,784 4,508,917 

Profit earned  375,473 58,752 

Key Management 
Personnel 

Executives 
Salaries and other short-term 
employee benefits 

 
3,667,880 3,048,021 

Directors Board Remuneration  200,000 200,000 
 
Balances as at the year-end 

   As at 31 December 
 Nature of balance Note 2020 2019 
Due from a related party     
Shuaa Capital PSC, UAE Loan to shareholder 9.1 8,348,882 5,876,476 

 
9.1 This represents an unsecured short-term intercompany loan without any asset-backed transaction with the Parent Company 

under an agreement made on 7 February 2019. The loan bears interest of 9.5% per annum and was repayable in 90 days. 
However, upon the expiry of the term, it was rescheduled by the Company on the request of the Parent Company dated 5 
August 2019 for another 180 days and was repayable on 4 November 2019. As at December 31, 2020 the loan has been 
overdue for more than 360 days. However, since the Company is ultimately owned 100% by Shuaa Capital PSC, UAE, no 
provision for impairment has been recorded. 
 
Net investment in Islamic financing 
The Company has entered into certain Islamic financing agreements with the related parties during the year. These related 
parties are special purpose vehicles of Shuaa Capital KSA. Due from these related parties against outstanding Islamic 
financing are included within net investment in Islamic financing and are given below: 

 
 

Note 2020 2019 

Second Coast Company for Commercial Hotels 9.2 7,773,126 9,969,722 

Fifth Coast Company for Commercial Hotels 9.2 5,408,478 5,334,347 

First Sabeel Hotels Company 9.2 8,267,533 9,481,306 
Raibat Al Yasmin Company for Real Estate Investment and 
Development 

9.2 10,286,143 9,676,806 

Shuaa Cayan City Lights for Development & Real Estate 
Investment Company 

9.2 5,643,926 4,567,669 

  37,379,206 39,029,850 

  

     
Due to related parties     

Gulf Finance Company PJSC, UAE 
Allocation of software and 

related cost 
 92,340 107,671 

   92,340 107,671 
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9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

 
9.2. The following represents the terms and conditions of short-term financing provided to related parties. 

 

Secured  Ijara Note Relationship 
Effective 

Interest Rate 
Tenure 

Amount 
Financed 

Second Coast Company for Commercial 
Hotels 

9.3 Affiliates 10% 12 months 9,500,000 

Fifth Coast Company for Commercial 
Hotels 

9.4 Affiliates 10% 12 months 5,000,000 

First Sabeel Hotels Company 9.5 Affiliates 10% 12 months 7,600,000 

     22,100,000 

      

Unsecured  Murabaha      

Raibat Al Yasmin Company for Real 
Estate Investment and Development 

9.6 Affiliates 10% 12 months 9,500,000 

Shuaa Cayan City Lights for Development 
& Real Estate Investment Company 

9.7 Affiliates 10% 12 months 3,000,000 

Shuaa Cayan City Lights for Development 
& Real Estate Investment Company 

 Affiliates 10% 12 months 2,209,701 

     14,709,701 
      

     36,809,701 

 
9.3. During the year 2020, the Company has deferred the loan for a further period of 12 months under SAMA Program. 
9.4. During the year 2020, the Company has deferred the loan for a further period of 12 months under Monshaat Program. 
9.5. During the year 2020, the Company has deferred the loan for a further period of 12 months under Monshaat Program. 
9.6. During the year 2020, the Company has deferred the loan for a further period of 12 months under SAMA Program. 
9.7. During the year 2020, the Company has rescheduled the loan for a further period of 12 months. Accrued profit was not 

received at the time of rescheduling. The rescheduling was done without any asset-backed transaction required under 
Islamic principles. 
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10. ASSET REPOSSESSED HELD FOR SALE 
 
The Company acquired certain assets in the satisfaction of a claim in order to achieve an orderly realization of financing 
receivables. The Company filed legal cases against the customers. These repossessed assets are expected to be sold within 
12 months from the reporting date. 
 
 

10.1. Movement in repossessed assets held for sale 
 

2020 2019 
Opening balance as at 1 January  741,000 1,116,556 
Disposals during the year  - - 
Impairment on fair value measurement* (741,000) (375,556) 
Write-off during the year  - - 
Balance as 31 December  -   741,000 

 
 
*As of the date of approval of these financial statements the management is under discussion with the third party custodian 
on the physical status of these assets. However, considering the uncertainty involved, these assets are fully provided for in 
the financial statements for the year ended 31, December 2020. 
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11. NET INVESTMENT IN ISLAMIC FINANCING 
 

  As at 31 December 

  2020 2019 

Financial asset carried at amortized cost    
Murabaha  40,944,019 21,029,699 
    

Investment classified as a finance lease    

Ijara  147,182,981 146,394,200 

  188,127,000 167,423,899 

 

11.1 Details of net investment in Islamic financing: 
 

 

Note 

Ijara Murabaha Total 

 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 
Gross investment in 
Islamic financing 

11.2 182,225,264 174,768,985 47,589,449 23,446,398 229,814,713 198,215,383 

Unearned / Deferred 
Islamic financing 
income 

 (30,696,325) (24,423,293) (6,252,930) (2,378,386) (36,949,255) (26,801,679) 

  151,528,939 150,345,692 41,336,519 21,068,012 192,865,458 171,413,704 

Unearned origination fees (762,180) (1,104,227) (203,381)   - (965,561) (1,104,227) 
 150,766,759 149,241,465 41,133,138 21,068,012 191,899,897 170,309,477 
Impairment on Islamic 
financing 

(3,583,778) (2,847,265) (189,119) (38,313) (3,772,897) (2,885,578) 

Net investment in Islamic 
financing 

147,182,981 146,394,200 40,944,019 21,029,699 188,127,000 167,423,899 

Current portion 62,507,869 76,528,337 23,166,524 17,724,859 85,674,393 94,253,196 
Non-current portion 84,675,112 69,865,863 17,777,495 3,304,840 102,452,607 73,170,703 
 
 

11.2 This includes balances due from related parties (Refer Note 9). 
 

11.3    The maturity of the investment in Ijara is as follows: 
 

 As at 31 December 
 2020 2019 

Year 1 86,038,087 95,240,999 

Year 2 43,749,318 42,348,760 

Year 3 36,185,110 28,680,479 

Year 4 18,471,540 7,977,896 

Year 5 onwards 3,226,629 520,851 

Gross investment in Ijara 187,670,684 174,768,985 

Less: Unearned income (30,696,325) (24,423,293) 

Net investment in Ijara 156,974,359 150,345,692 
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11. NET INVESTMENT IN ISLAMIC FINANCING (CONTINUED) 
 

11.4. The Company in the ordinary course of its business holds collateral in respect of Islamic financing (being the title of assets 
leased out) including real-estate collaterals in order to mitigate the credit risk associated with them. These collaterals are 
not readily convertible into cash and are intended to be repossessed and disposed of in case the customer defaults. 

 
11.5.  The Company has assigned Islamic financing receivables amounting to SR 2.96 million (31 December 2019: SR 3.58 

million) to local commercial banks for obtaining financial facilities. These Islamic financing receivables have not been 
derecognized from the statement of financial position as the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards, 
primarily credit risk. 

 
11.6.  The title of the assets sold under finance lease agreements is held in the name of the Company. Further, all investments 

in Islamic financing are secured through personal guarantees.  
 

11.7. In response to COVID-

S
that qualify as MSME with extending the tenure of the facility. 

 
11.8. During September 2020 it was extended for 3 months and during December 2020, SAMA further extended the same for 

additional 3.5 months for qualifying MSME. The accounting impact of these changes in terms of the net investment in 
Islamic Financing has been assessed and account for as per the requirements of IFRS 9 as a modification in terms of the 
arrangements (see Note 27). Modification loss has been recognized under other income / (expenses) in the statement of 
profit or loss 

 
11.9. In order to support the SME sector, Monshaat instructed the Company to defer payments of all customers under the 

Monshaat program for a period of 12 months. The accounting impact of these changes in terms of the net investment in 
Islamic Financing has been assessed and account for as per the requirements of IFRS 9 as a modification in terms of the 
arrangements (see Note 27). Modification loss has been recognized under other income / (expenses) in the statement of 
profit or loss. 

 
11.10. During the year, the Company has provided financing amounting to SR 20.5 million to Small and Medium-Sized Entities 

(SME) that qualify for the facility under SAMA funding for lending program on profit rates below-market. These 
facilities are 95% secured under the Kafala program and these facilities are repayable in 30 monthly installments with 

market prevailing profit rates for similar financing facilities to determine the fair value. The difference between financing 
provided and its fair value is recorded in the statement of profit or loss as per the requirements of IFRS 9 (see Note 27). 

 
11.11. The movement in the provision for impairment of Islamic financings during the year is as follows: 

 

 Note 2020 2019 
Balance at the beginning of the year  2,885,578 4,375,391 
(Reversed) / provided during the year  912,369 (1,168,747) 
Written off during the year 11.12 (25,050) (321,066) 
Balance at the end of the year  3,772,897 2,885,578 

 
11.12. During the year, the Board of Directors and management of the Company approved a write-off of net investment in 

Islamic financing receivable. These amounts are subject to enforcement activities. 
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12. RESTRICTED CASH DEPOSITS 
 
The Company has placed these funds as margin deposits for certain financial facilities granted to the Company by 
counterparty finance providers. The Company also earns a profit on these balances. 
 

 As at 31 December 

  2020 2019 

Restricted cash deposit 355,720 355,720 

 355,720 355,720 

 

13. INVESTMENT CARRIED AT FVOCI 
 
During 2017, in accordance with instructions issued by SAMA, the Company has made an investment in the Saudi 
Financial Lease Contract Registry Company amounting to SR 892,850. The Company holds 89,285 number of shares 
(2018: 89,285). 
 
The investment in equity instrument is not held for trading. Instead, held for the medium to long-term purposes. 
Accordingly, the Company has elected to designate this investment in equity instruments as at FVOCI. 
 
Due to the unavailability of the recent information to determine the fair value of the Company, the cost of the investment 
is considered to be the best estimate of fair value. 
 
 

14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 

 2020 

 

Computers and 
office 

equipment 

Furniture and 
fixture 

Motor Vehicle Total 

Cost     
Opening balance 733,097 437,595 45,750 1,216,442 
Additions 6,870 -   - 6,870 

As of 31 December 2020 739,967 437,595 45,750 1,223,312 

Accumulated depreciation     
Opening balance 724,600 308,164 45,750 1,078,514 
Charge for the year 8,497 31,927 - 40,424 

As of 31 December 2020 733,097 340,091 45,750 1,118,938 

Net book value:     

As of 31 December 2020 6,870 97,504 -   104,374 
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14. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 

 
 
 
 2019 

 

Computers and 
office 

equipment 

Furniture and 
fixture 

Motor Vehicle Total 

Cost     
Opening balance 733,097 1,631,151 45,750 2,409,998 
Additions - 144,660 - 144,660 
Write off* - (1,338,216) - (1,338,216) 

As of 31 December 2019 733,097 437,595 45,750 1,216,442 

Accumulated depreciation     
Opening balance 692,626 1,087,299 45,750 1,825,675 
Charge for the year 31,974 157,616 - 189,590 
Write off  - (936,751) - (936,751) 

As of 31 December 2019 724,600 308,164 45,750 1,078,514 

Net book value:     

As of 31 December 2019 8,497 129,431 - 137,928 

 

*During 2019, the board of directors of the Company have approved a write-off of furniture and fixture amounting to SR 1.338 
million relating to Jeddah Head office comprising of net book value of SR 0.401 million. 
 

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 2020 2019 
 Computer Software 

Cost   
Opening balance 4,582,700 4,337,973 
Additions 100,000 244,727 
Disposals  - - 

As of 31 December  4,682,700 4,582,700 

Accumulated amortization   
Opening balance 3,799,095 2,719,297 
Charge for the year 803,605 1,079,798 
Disposals  - - 

As of 31 December  4,602,700 3,799,095 

Net book value:   

As of 31 December 80,000 783,605 
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16. LEASES 
 

16.1. Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position 
The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:   

     
 Note  2020  2019 
Right-of-use assets- Building     
Balance as at 1 January  197,481  - 
Additions during the period  -  197,481 
Balance as at 31 December  197,481  197,481 
Accumulated Depreciation     
Balance as at 1 January  (32,913)  - 
Depreciation charge for the period 26 (65,827)  (32,913) 
Balance as at 31 December  (98,740)  (32,913) 
Net Book Value as at 31 December   98,741  164,568 
     
Lease Liabilities     
Balance as at 1 January  166,585  - 
Additions during the period  -    197,481 
Charge for the period 25 5,424  4,104 
Less: Lease payments during the period  (70,000)  (35,000) 
Balance as at 31 December  102,009  166,585 

 
 

16.2. Maturity profile of lease liabilities: 
 As at 31 December 
 2020 2019 

Year 1 70,000 70,000 
Year 2 35,000 70,000 
Year 3 - 35,000 
Year 4 - - 
Year 5 onwards - - 
Total undiscounted lease liabilities 105,000 175,000 
Less: Finance cost (2,991) (8,415) 
 102,009 166,585 

   
 As at 31 December 

  2020 2019 

Current portion 67,154 64,152 
Lease liabilities    
   
Non-current portion   
Lease liabilities  34,855 102,433 

 102,009 166,585 
 

16.3. Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss 
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases: 

 2020 2019 
Lease financial cost (included in finance cost) 5,423 4,104 
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in General and administrative expenses) 510,610 641,294 
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets that are not short-term leases  - - 
Expense relating to variable lease payments not included in lease liabilities  - - 
 
The total cash outflow for leases in 2020 was SR 70,000 (31 December 2019: SR35,000). 
 



 
 
GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 

37 | P a g e  
 

 
 

17. SHARE CAPITAL 
-up share capital of SR. 100,000,000 is divided into 10,000,000 equity shares of SR. 

10 each fully subscribed and paid, and distributed among shareholders as follows: 
 

 As at 31 December 2020 
As at 31 

December 2019 

Shareholders 
Holding 

% 
 

No. of 
Shares 

 Amount Amount 

Shuaa Capital PSC, UAE 92%  9,200,000  92,000,000 92,000,000 
Gulf Finance Company PJSC, UAE 5%  500,000  5,000,000 5,000,000 
Shuaa 1 for Commercial Brokerage LLC, UAE 1%  100,000  1,000,000 1,000,000 
Shuaa 2 for Commercial Brokerage LLC, UAE 1%  100,000  1,000,000 1,000,000 
Shuaa 3 for Commercial Brokerage LLC, UAE 1%  100,000  1,000,000 1,000,000 
 100%  10,000,000  100,000,000 100,000,000 

 
18. STATUTORY RESERVE 

By-laws, 10% of the net profit for the year, has been transferred to the statutory reserve. 
The Company may resolve to discontinue such transfers when the reserve totals 30% of the share capital. The reserve is 
not available for distribution. 
 

19. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 
 As at 31 December 
 2020 2019 
Payable to suppliers 1,170,598 520,656 
Unclaimed deposits 1,008,878 1,908,261 
Accrued expenses 839,413 1,432,329 
Others 433,910 11,128 
 3,452,799 3,872,374 

 

20. PROVISION FOR ZAKAT 
The movement in the provision for zakat is as follows: 

 2020 2019 
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,045,050 654,119 

Provided during the year 351,884 878,894 
Reversal of prior year charge  -   (67,152) 

 351,884 811,742 
Payment during the year (920,432) (420,811) 

Balance at the end of the year 476,502 1,045,050 

 
 
STATUS OF ASSESSMENTS 
The Zakat returns for the years ended 31 December 2014 till 2017 had been filed and were under review by GAZT. During 
the current year, upon finalization of the assessment, demand has been raised by GAZT of SR 259,618 for the years 2014 till 
2017. The first payment of SR 51,923 was made immediately upon receipt of the notice. The remaining amount is payable in 
equal installments of SR 41,539 from 2019 to 2023 with the first amount paid on 16 December 2019. During the year the 
Company has paid an installment amount of SR 41,539. As of 31 December 2020, the remaining installment amount is SR 
124,617 (3 installments of SR 41,539 each). 

The Zakat return for the year ended 31 December 2019 has been filed and are under review with GAZT. The Company has 
obtained a certificate from the GAZT valid until 18 Ramadan 1442H corresponding to 30 April 2021 
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21. FINANCIAL FACILITIES  
 

  As at 31 December 
 Notes 2020 2019 

Long-term financial facilities 21.1, 21.3 142,243,255 99,177,439 

Finance Cost payable  1,423,844 91,398 

  143,667,099 99,268,837 

 
21.1. Maturity profile 

  As at 31 December 
  2020 2019 

Current portion    

Long-term financial facilities  58,474,044 40,909,370 
    
Non-current portion    

Long-term financial facilities  83,769,211 58,268,069 

  142,243,255 99,177,439 
 

21.2. Unsecured financial facilities at amortized cost 
 As at 31 December 
  2020 2019 

  Zero-interest loan 139,974,862 96,469,317 
 
Secured financial facilities at amortized cost 

 As at 31 December 
  2020 2019 

  Murabaha 2,268,393 2,708,122 
 
 

21.3. The Company obtained bank financial facilities from a local bank for the purpose of financing working capital needs. These 
bank facilities bear finance costs at market prevailing rates and also have restricted cash deposits. The Company has 
collateralized certain Islamic financing receivables in order to obtain these financial facilities (Refer Note 11.5) 

21.4. During the year, the Company has obtained government financing amounting to SR 20.5 million from SAMA at a zero-
profit rate to finance the Small and Medium-Sized Entities (SME) under SAMA funding for lending program. These 

rom the 
date of the contract, which is discounted using average market prevailing profit rates for similar financing facilities. The 
present value of these amounts to SR 18.6 million. The difference between financing received and its present value is 
recorded as a government grant and a part of it has been recorded as deferred income since the Company is yet to incur the 
related costs (see Note 27). 
 

21.5. During the year, the Company has obtained government financing amounting to SR 38.24 million from SAMA at a zero-
profit rate under SAMA liquidity support program. These financings are repayable in 36 monthly installments with the 
first installment is due after 6 e period from the date of the contract, which is discounted using average market  
prevailing profit rates for similar financing facilities. The present value of these amounts to SR 35.49 million. The 
difference between financing received and its present value is recorded as a government grant (see Note 27). 
 

21.6. During the year, in accordance with the instructions of SAMA, Banks have rescheduled the repayments of the financial 
facilities by deferring and extending the tenure of the facilities by 6-months. The accounting impact of these changes in 
terms of the financial facilities has been assessed and account for as per the requirements of IFRS 9 as a modification in 
terms of the arrangements (see Note 27).  
 

21.7. The facility agreements include covenants which, among other things, require the Company to maintain certain financial 
ratios. As of 30 December 2020, the Company is in compliance with the covenants of the financing agreements 
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22. END OF SERVICE INDEMNITIES 

 
 As at 31 December 
 

2020 
2019 

 

The present value of the defined benefit obligation 1,661,098 1,149,593 
 

 

22.1. PRINCIPAL ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS 
  
 2020 2019 

Discount rate (% per annum) 3.07% 3.58% 

Rate of change in salary (% per annum) 7% 7% 

Mortality rates SLIC (2001-2005) AM92 Ultimate AM92 Ultimate 

Employee turnover (withdrawal) rates 2.03% 1.76% 
 
 

22.2. AMOUNT CHARGEABLE TO PROFIT OR LOSS 
 

  2020 2019 

Past service cost - (57,149) 

Service cost 409,232   416,320 

Finance cost on net defined benefit liability 45,254 69,226 

The total amount charged to statement of profit and loss 454,486 428,397 

 
 
 

22.3. AMOUNT CHARGED TO OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
 

  2020 2019 

Actuarial Losses due to change in financial assumptions 77,425  141,011 

Actuarial Gains due to experience adjustments (2,906) (370,486) 

Amount charged to other comprehensive loss or income 74,519 (229,475) 

 
 
 
 

22.4. RECONCILIATION OF THE PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION
 2020 2019 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,149,593 1,271,238 

Charge for the year 529,005 198,922 

Paid during the year (17,500) (320,567) 

Balance at the end of the year 1,661,098 1,149,593 
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22. END OF SERVICE INDEMNITIES (CONTINUED) 

 
22.5. The sensitivity of the end of service indemnities to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is: 

 

 Change in 
assumption 

Increase / (decrease) in present 
value of employees' post-

employment benefit liability 

  Amount % 

Discount rate +1% 1,514,077 -8.85% 
 -1% 1,830,861 10.22% 

Long term salary +1% 1,830,775 10.21% 
 -1% 1,510,968 -9.04% 

Mortality 120% 1,659,052 -0.12% 
 80% 1,663,154 0.12% 

Employee turnover rate +1% 1,604,946 -3.38% 
 -1% 1,723,100 3.73% 
 

22.6. Maturity profile: 
 

 As at 31 December 
 2020 2019 

Year 1 100,106 77,383 

Year 2 118,210 92,913 

Year 3 154,402 108,771 

Year 4 175,602 139,678 

Year 5 onwards 9,420,978 8,565,509 

Total undiscounted defined benefit obligation 9,969,298 8,984,254 

Less: Finance cost (8,308,200) (7,834,661) 

 1,661,098 1,149,593 

 
   The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 13.8 years. 

  As at 31 December 
 2020 2019 

Current portion   
End of service indemnities  96,646 74,708 
   
Non-current portion   
End of service indemnities 1,564,452 1,074,885 

 1,661,098 1,149,593 

 
23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

During 2019, the Company has offered a loan to its shareholder Shuaa Capital PSC UAE amounting to SR 8 million as 
disclosed in Note 9. The Loan was provided in contravention of certain of provisions of SAMA as a result the penalties 
section of the regulation includes possible penalties amounting to SR 250k - SR500K. The Company have submitted a 
letter to SAMA dated 27 February 2020, explaining the fact pattern, and, yet to receive a formal reply. Due to the inability 
to measure the amount of obligation with sufficient reliability, no provision for the penalties is recognized in the financial 
statements as at 31 December 2020. 
  



 
 
GULF FINANCE COMPANY  
(A Saudi Closed Joint Stock Company)  
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020 
(All amounts in Saudi Riyals unless otherwise stated) 

41 | P a g e  
 

 
24. INCOME FROM ISLAMIC FINANCING, NET 

  2020 2019 

Revenue from main operation   

Income from Ijara 16,635,596 14,849,544 

Income from Murabaha 3,152,494 713,318 

 19,788,090 15,562,862 
 

24.1. Directly allocated transaction cost of Islamic financing is amounting to SR 0.01 million (2019: SR 0.04 million). 
 

24.2. Insurance expenses for Ijara financing are amounting to SR 1.01 million (2019: SR 1.34 million). 
 

25. FINANCE COST 
  Note 2020 2019 

Financial facilities;    
-Murabaha 21.3 121,231 148,969 
-Zero interest rate 21.4 2,356,691   1,203,713 
Finance cost on End-of-service indemnities   45,254 - 

Lease liabilities 16.1 5,424    4,104 
Bank charges  34,770 37,829 
  2,563,370 1,394,615 
 

26. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 Note 2020 2019 

Salaries and allowances   7,209,662 7,427,075 
Professional and consultancy fees  819,746 658,958 
Amortization of intangible assets 15 803,605 1,079,798 
Other  642,054 1,097,444 
IT expenses  608,817 1,092,298 
Rent Expense 16.3 510,610 641,294 
Provision for operational loss  266,910 - 
Communication  178,566 234,306 
Traveling expense  83,659 354,789 
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 16.1 65,827 32,913 
Legal fees  48,337 81,733 
Depreciation on property and equipment 14 40,424 189,590 
Printing and stationary   7,832 24,915 
Repairs and maintenance  - 8,127 
  11,286,049 12,923,240 

 
27. OTHER(EXPENSES) / INCOME, NET 

  Note 2020 2019 
Modification gain on financial liabilities 21.6 2,935,807 - 
Government grant on SAMA funding for lending 21.4 1,819,795 - 
Government grant on SAMA liquidity support 21.5 995,696 - 
Origination fee   941,167 1,423,508 
Finance income on loan to shareholder 9 763,155   681,886 
Fees and Commission  473,398 - 
Profit on Term deposit  419,943   519,905 
Commission on collection 9 87,538 - 
Loss on the fair valuation of initial recognition of financial assets 11.10 (1,548,290) - 
Modification loss on financial assets 11.7 (16,244,645) - 
Write-off of property and equipment  -   (401,465) 

  (9,356,436) 2,223,834 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial 
statements. The Company uses derivatives financial instruments to reduce certain risk exposures. The Board of Directors 

framework. The Board is also respo  

 
28.1. Risk management structure  

 
Board of Directors 
The Board of Directors are responsible for establishing the Company's policies, including risk management framework, 
and to review the performance of the Company to ensure compliance with these policies. 
 
Credit and risk management committee 
The credit and risk management committee are appointed by the Board of Directors. The credit and risk management 
committee assists the Board in reviewing overall risks which the Company might face, evaluate and review operational 
and non-operational risks and decide on mitigating factors related therewith. 
 
Audit committee - 
The audit committee is appointed by the Board of Directors. The audit committee assists the Board in carrying out its 
responsibilities with respect to assessing the quality and integrity of financial reporting, the audit thereof and the soundness 
of the internal controls of the Company. 

28.2. Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of 
changes in market profit rates or the market prices of securities due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, 
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities or currencies and liquidity in the 
market. 

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: foreign exchange risk, profit rate risk and price risk. 

28.2.1. Foreign exchange risk 
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in fo Islamic financing arrangements are made in Saudi Riyals 
except for payments to shareholders and other transactions with shareholders which are in UAE Dirhams. Accordingly, the 
Company is not exposed to currency risk as both Saudi Riyals and UAE Dirhams are pegged against US Dollars and are 
exposed to similar fluctuations. 

28.2.2. Profit rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 

 

28.2.3. Price risk 
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or foreign exchange risk) whether those changes are caused 
by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments 
traded in the market. As of 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company has no investments that are exposed to price risk. 

28.3. Credit risk  
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party 
to incur a financial loss. The risk is generally limited to principal amounts and accrued profit thereon if any. The Company 
has established procedures to manage credit exposure including credit approvals, credit limits, collateral and guarantee 

obtains adequate securities where applicable. 
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28. RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

28.3. Credit risk (Continued) 
All investing transactions are settled/paid for upon delivery. The Company's policy is to enter into a financial instrument 
contract by following internal guidelines such as approving counterparties and approving credits. 

 . 
28.3.1 Credit quality analysis  

The Company monitors the credit quality of the Islamic financing receivables through diversification of activities to avoid 
undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups. For such purpose, the Company has established exposure limits 
for single lessees and business sectors. The Company has an effective rental monitoring system which allows it to evaluate 

 

An allowance for potential lease losses is maintained at a level which, in the judgment of management, is adequate to 
provide for potential losses on lease installment that can be reasonably anticipated. The credit quality of receivables can be 
assessed with reference to their historical performance with no or some defaults in recent history. However, the rating for 
the quality of th
consist of small business for which such data is not readily available. The concentration of credit risk arises when a number 
of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar 
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in 
economic, political or other conditions. 

T
a particular industry or geographic location. Ten largest customers account for 41.0% of the outstanding balance of 
investment in Islamic financing as of 31 December 2020 and 2019.  

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is: 
 

Note Classification 
As at 31 December 

 2020 2019 
Net Investment in Islamic Financing 11 Amortized cost 188,127,000 167,423,899 
Cash at bank 6 Amortized cost 10,756,206 26,623,908 
Term deposits 7 Amortized cost 33,039,331 - 
Due from a related party 9 Amortized cost 8,348,882 5,876,476 
Restricted cash deposit 12 Amortized cost 355,720 355,720 
Other receivables 8 Amortized cost 65,964 146,807 
   240,693,103 200,426,810 

 
 
 

 As at 31 December 2020 
 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
Construction 41,607,021 - 3,012,779 44,619,800 
Manufacturing 25,987,767 - 6,921,403 32,909,170 
Commerce 13,136,828 - 26,102 13,162,930 
Services 93,465,908 5,643,926 2,098,163 101,207,997 
 174,197,524 5,643,926 12,058,447 191,899,897 

 

28.3.2. Impairment 
Cash at banks and restricted deposits are placed with banks with sound credit ratings which are given in Note 28.3.5. Cash 
at bank, advances to employees, restricted deposits with bank and other receivables are considered to have low credit risk; 
therefore, 12 months ECL model was used for impairment assessment. Based on management impairment assessment, 
there is no provision required in respect of these balances. The Company applies the general impairment ECL model to 
measure the credit allowances against net investment in Islamic financing which is explained below. 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

 
28.3 Credit risk (continued) 

 
28.3.2 Impairment (continued) 

 
28.3.2.1.  Measurement of ECL 

 
The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables: 
(I) probability of default (PD); 
(ii) loss given default (LGD); 
(iii) exposure at default (EAD). 
 
These parameters are generally derived from internally developed statistical models and other historical data. They are 
adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as described above. 
 
PD estimates are estimates at a certain date, which are calculated based on statistical rating models, and assessed using 
rating tools tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are based on 
internally compiled data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors. Where it is available, market data may also 
be used to derive the PD for large non-retail counterparties. If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, 
then this will lead to a change in the estimate of the associated PD. PDs are estimated considering the contractual maturities 
of exposures and estimated prepayment rates. 
 
LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Company estimates LGD parameters based on the legal 
standing against the defaulting counterparties. The LGD models also consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the 
claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of any collateral that is integral to the lease receivable. 
 
EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Company derives the EAD from the current lease 
receivables to the customer and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the lease contract including 
amortization. The EAD of a lease receivable is its carrying amount before allowance for impairment. 
 
As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for lease receivables for which credit risk has not 
significantly increased, the Company measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period 
over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for risk management purposes, the Company considers a longer period. The 
maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the Company has the right to require installment. 
 
Where modeling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial instruments are banked on the basis of 
shared risk characteristics that include: 

 business sector of the customers; 
 collateral type; 
 date of initial recognition; 
 remaining term to maturity; 

 
28.3.2.2 Categorization 

 
The Company categorizes its investment in Islamic financing into Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3, as described below: 
 
Stage 1: When lease receivables are first recognized, the Company recognizes an allowance based on 12 months ECLs. 
Stage 1 receivables also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the receivable has been reclassified from 
Stage 2. 
 
Stage 2: When a receivable has shown a significant increase in credit risk since origination, the Company records an 
allowance for the Lifetime ECL. Stage 2 receivables also include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and the 
receivable has been reclassified from Stage 3. 
 
Stage 3: Receivable considered credit-impaired. The Company records an allowance for the Lifetime ECL. 
 
POCI: Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are credit impaired on initial 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

 
28.3. Credit risk (continued) 

 
28.3.2. Impairment (continued) 

 
28.3.2.2 Categorization (continued) 

recognition. POCI assets are recorded at fair value at original recognition and interest income is subsequently recognized 
based on a credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognized or released to the extent that there is a subsequent change in the 
expected credit losses. 

28.3.2.3 Amounts arising from ECL  Significant increase in credit risk 

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue 
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical 
experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking information. 

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for exposure by 
comparing: 
- the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with 
- the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of the exposure 

(adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment expectations). 
 
Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly 

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly include quantitative changes in PDs and 
qualitative factors, including a backstop based on delinquency. 
 
The credit risk of a particular exposure is deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition if, based on the 
Company's quantitative modeling, the remaining lifetime PD is determined to have increased significantly. 
 
Using its expert credit judgment and, where possible, relevant historical experience, the Company may determine that 
exposure has undergone a significant increase in credit risk based on particular qualitative indicators that it considers are 
indicative of such and whose effect may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. 
 
As a backstop, the Company considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is more 
than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest elapsed due date in 
respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without considering any grace period that 
might be available to the customer. 
 
The Company monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk by regular 
reviews to confirm that: 
 the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before exposure is in default; 
 the criteria do not align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due; and 
 there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month PD (stage 1) and lifetime PD 

(stage 2). 
 

28.3.2.4 Generating the term structure of PD 
 
The Company employs various techniques to develop business sector PD models. In this process, the dependent variable 
is the default rate and the independent variables are the macro variables. The macro variable (Oil price) was selected on 
the basis of business intuition and statistical analysis performed. 

Based on advice from the Company credit and risk committee and consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast 
information, the Company formulates a 'base case' view of the future direction of macro-economic variable as well as a 
representative range of other possible forecast scenarios. The Company then uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates of 
PDs.  
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

 
28.3. Credit risk (continued) 

 
28.3.2. Impairment (continued) 

 
28.3.4.  Definition of Default 

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when: 

- the customer is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to 
actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or 

- the customer is past due more than 90 days. 
In assessing whether a customer is in default, the Company also considers indicators that are: 
- qualitative - e.g., breaches of lease contract; 
- quantitative- e.g., overdue status and non-payment; and 
- based on data developed internally. 

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over time to 
reflect changes in circumstances. 
 

28.3.2.6 Incorporation of forward-looking information 
The Company incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment of whether the credit risk of a receivable 

credit risk committee and consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast information, the Company formulates 
a 'base case' view of the future direction of relevant economic variables as well as a representative range of other possible 
forecast scenarios. This process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the 
relative probabilities of each outcome. External information includes economic data and forecasts published by global 
monetary authorities and academic forecasters. 

The base case represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with information used by Company for other purposes such 
as strategic planning and budgeting. The other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. 
Periodically, the Company carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination of these other 
representative scenarios. 

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial 
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic variables and 
credit risk and credit losses. The management has used Crude Oil Petroleum, GDP Constant Prices, Government 
Expenditure and Credit growth as the key macro-economic variable as of 31 December 2020 to develop the base case 
scenario which the management estimates are the best estimate of the forecasted macro-economic variable for 
determination of the PD. Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various business 
sectors of the lease receivable have been developed based on analyzing historical data over the past 10 to 15 years. 

 
28.3.3. Modified financial assets 

The contractual terms of a lease receivable are mainly modified at the request of the customer. An existing lease receivable 
whose terms have been modified may be derecognized and the renegotiated lease receivable recognized as a new 
investment in Islamic financing at fair value in accordance with the accounting policy. 
 

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in de-recognition, the determination 
of whether the receivable's credit risk has increased significantly reflects the comparison of: 
- its remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; with 
- the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms. 
 

The Company renegotiates leases to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as 'forbearance activities' to maximize 
collection opportunities and minimize the risk of default. Under the Company's forbearance policy, lease receivable 
forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the customer is currently in default or if there is a high risk of default, there is 
evidence that the customer made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual terms and the customer is 
expected to be able to meet the revised terms. 
 

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity and changing the 
credit and risk committee regularly review reports on forbearance activities. 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

28.3. Credit risk (continued) 
 

28.3.2. Impairment (continued) 
 

28.3.3. Modified financial assets (continued) 
 

The following table provides information on financial assets that were modified while they had a loss allowance measured 
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. 

 

 2020 2019 
Financial assets modified since initial recognition   
Gross carrying amount at 31 December of financial assets for which 
lease receivable has changed to 12-month measurement during the year  

40,678,416 896,567 

 

For financial assets modified as part of the Company's forbearance policy, the estimate of PD reflects whether the 
modification has improved or restored the Company's ability to collect interest and principal and the Company's previous 
experience of similar forbearance action. As part of this process, the Company evaluates the customer's payment 
performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various behavioral indicators. 

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an expectation of forbearance 
may constitute evidence that exposure is credit-impaired /in default. A customer needs to demonstrate consistently good 
payment behavior over a period of time before the exposure is no longer considered to be credit-impaired/ in default or the 
PD is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to being measured at an amount equal to 12-month 
ECL. 

 
28.3.4 Net investment in Islamic financing 

The investment in Islamic financings generally exposes to significant credit risk. Therefore, the Company has established 
a number of procedures to manage credit exposure including evaluation of lessees' creditworthiness, formal credit 
approvals, assigning credit limits, obtaining collateral and personal guarantees.  
 
The Company also follows a credit classification mechanism, primarily driven by days delinquency as a tool to manage 
the quality of credit risk of the Islamic financing portfolio.  
 
The aging of net investment in Islamic financings contracts net-off unearned origination fee is as under: 

   
 

As at 31 December 
  2020 2019 

Neither past nor due  174,197,526 99,749,006 
Past due 1-30 days  - 14,189,372 
Past due 31-90 days  5,643,925 38,694,035 
Past due 91-180 days  173,224 2,080,971 
Past due 181-365 days  256,149 12,062,313 
Past due over 1 year  11,629,073 3,533,780 
Net Investment in Islamic financing before provision  191,899,897 170,309,477 
Less: Impairment for Islamic financing  (3,772,897) (2,885,578) 

Net of Impairment loss  188,127,000 167,423,899 
Total portfolio coverage ratio   1.97% 1.69% 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

28.3. Credit risk (continued) 
 

28.3.2. Impairment (continued) 
 

28.3.4. Net Investment in Islamic Financing (continued) 
 
Net investment in Islamic financing and the corresponding ECL allowance as at 31 December 2020 classified into is as 
follows: 

 As at 31 December 2020 
 Stage 1    Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
     
Carrying amount before ECL 174,197,526 5,643,925 12,058,446 191,899,897 
ECL 701,171 5,397 3,066,329 3,772,897 

 
 

 As at 31 December 2019 
 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
     
Carrying amount before ECL 113,938,378 38,694,035 17,677,064 170,309,477 
ECL 403,931 230,727 2,250,920 2,885,578 

 
 
The portfolio that is neither past due nor impaired has a satisfactory history of repayment, where applicable. As at the 
statement of financial position date, the Company has adequate collaterals to cover the overall credit risk exposure after 
making an impairment provision. 
 
Management classifies the investment in Islamic financing that are either not yet due or otherwise past due but for 90 days 

-
Below is the breakdown of performing and non-performing Islamic financing: 
 

 As at 31 December 

 2020 2019 
Performing 179,841,451 152,632,413 

Non-performing 12,058,446 17,677,064 
 191,899,897 170,309,477 

 

 

   The movement in provision for impairment for Islamic financing receivables is as follows: 
 

  Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
1 January 2020 403,931 230,727 2,250,920 2,885,578 
Transfer from stage 1 (6,887)   6,887    -   -   
Transfer from stage 2 225,045 (230,641) 5,596 -   
Transfer from stage 3 569,892 -   (569,892) -   
Financial assets  settled during the year (5,651) (85) (100,096) (105,832) 
Financial assets  originated during the year 157,113 -   -   157,113 
Net re-measurement of loss allowance (642,272) (1,491)   1,504,851 861,088 
 297,240 (225,330) 840,459 912,369 
Write-off during the year   (25,050) (25,050) 
31 December 2020 701,171 5,397    3,066,329 3,772,897 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

28.3. Credit risk (continued) 
 

28.3.2. Impairment (continued) 
 

28.3.4. Net Investment in Islamic Financing (continued) 
 
 

 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
1 January 2019 527,825 331,590 3,515,976 4,375,391 
Transfer from stage 1  (62,269)  38,172   24,097  - 
Transfer from stage 2  13,725   (218,638)  204,913  - 
Transfer from stage 3  225,880   343,277   (569,157) - 
Financial assets  settled during the year  (19,286)  (182,167)  (610,740)  (812,193) 
Financial assets  originated during the year  197,052   24,486    221,538  
Net re-measurement of loss allowance  (470,177)  (31,707)  (76,208)  (578,092) 
Transfer to parent company (115,075) (26,577) (1,027,095) (1,168,747) 
Write-off during the year  (8,819)  (74,286)  (237,961)  (321,066) 
31 December 2019 403,931 230,727 2,250,920 2,885,578 
 
Concentration risk 
Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counter-parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities 
in the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual 
obligations to be affected similarly by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk 
indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry or 
geographical location. 
 
 
The Company manages its credit risk exposure through diversification of Islamic financing activities to ensure that there 
is no undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or businesses. 
 
The c
of investment in Islamic financing as at 31 December is as follows: 

 As of 31 December 
 2020 2019 
Construction 23.25% 25.29% 
Manufacturing 17.15% 14.10% 
Commerce 6.86% 8.66% 
Services 52.74% 51.95% 
 100.00% 100.00% 

 
Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements 
The credit risks on gross amounts due in relation to the investment in Islamic financing is mitigated by holding collaterals 
which are leased assets and real-estate. Further, the carrying amount of investment in Islamic Financing amounts against 
which collateral has been obtained amounts to SR 175.50 million (31 December 2019: 154.54 million) and the fair value 
of collateral amounting to SR 255.27 million as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 384.88 million). The Company 
is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the lessee. There have not been any significant 
changes in the quality of the collateral. 
 

28.3.5 Bank Credit Rating 
is assessed with reference to external credit ratings which, in all cases, 

are above investment-grade rating. Other receivables are neither significant nor exposed to significant credit risk. No ECL 
was taken for restricted cash deposits and bank balances as the impact of the ECL was not material. The bank balances 
along with credit ratings are tabulated below: 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

 
28.3. Credit risk (continued) 

 
28.3.2. Impairment (continued) 

 
28.3.5. Bank Credit Ratings (continued) 

 As at 31 December 
 2020 2019 
Cash at bank:   
A- 8,348,140 2,890,017 
BBB+ 2,408,066 23,733,891 
   
Term Deposits:   
A- 33,039,331 - 
   
Restricted cash deposit:   
A- 355,720 355,720 
 44,151,257 26,979,628 

 

28.4. Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. 
Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company will be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected 
or will face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.  
 

to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 
 

 

trade payables, due to related parties, financial facilities and other 
payables and accruals. The Company expects to have adequate liquid funds to settle its current liabilities through close 
monitoring due to both current assets and current liabilities. 
 

Following are the contractual maturities of undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and 
2019: 
 

 As at 31 December 2020 
Contractual maturities of 
financial liabilities Carrying 

amount 
Contractual 
cash flows 

Up to three 
months 

More than 
three months 
and up to one 

year 

More than 
one year 

Non-derivative      
Other payables and accruals 3,452,799 3,452,799 3,452,799 - - 
Financial facilities 143,667,099 148,565,632 6,115,207 58,228,972 84,221,453 
Due to a related party 92,340 92,340 92,340 -   -   
 147,212,238 152,110,771 9,660,346 58,228,972 84,221,453 

 

 

 

 As at 31 December 2019 
Contractual maturities of 
financial liabilities Carrying 

amount 
Contractual 
cash flows 

Up to three 
months 

More than 
three months 
and up to one 

year 

More than 
one year 

Non-derivative      
Other payables and accruals 3,872,374 3,872,374 3,872,374 - - 
Financial facilities 99,268,837 100,994,700 9,297,835 32,779,149 58,917,716 
Due to related parties 107,671 107,671 107,671 - - 
 103,248,882 104,974,745 13,277,880 32,779,149 58,917,716 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

28.4. Credit risk (continued) 
 

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities based on maturities 

 The table shows an analysis of financial assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or 
settled: 

 As at 31 December 2020 

 Carrying 
amounts 

 Up to three 
months 

 

More than 
three months 

and up to 
one year 

 More than 
one year 

Cash and cash equivalents 10,759,206  10,759,206  -  - 
Term deposits 33,039,331  12,014,000  21,025,331   
Prepayments and other receivables 1,164,382  497,719  666,663  - 
Due from a related party 8,348,882  8,348,882  -  - 
Net investment in Islamic financing 188,127,000  46,783,405  38,890,987  102,452,608 

Restricted cash deposit 355,720  -  -  355,720 
Investment carried at FVOCI 

892,850 
 

- 
 

- 
 

892,850 
    
Financial assets  242,687,371  78,403,212  60,582,981  103,701,178 
        
Other payables and accruals 3,452,799  3,452,799  -  - 
Due to a related party 92,340  92,340  -  - 
Financial facilities  143,667,099  5,564,342  54,333,546  83,769,211 
Financial liabilities 147,212,238  9,109,481  54,333,546  83,769,211 
        

Maturity gap 95,475,133  69,293,731  6,249,435  19,931,967 

Cumulative maturity gap   69,293,731  75,543,166  95,475,133 

 

 As at 31 December 2019 

 Carrying 
amounts 

 Up to three 
months 

 
More than 

three months 
and up to 
one year 

 More than 
one year 

Cash and cash equivalents 26,626,908  26,626,908  -  - 
Prepayments and other receivables 1,623,332  612,229  1,011,103  - 
Due from a related party 5,876,476  5,876,476  -  - 
Net investment in Islamic financing 167,423,899  25,105,995  69,147,201  73,170,703 
Restricted cash deposit 355,720 

892,850 
 - 

- 
 - 

- 
 355,720 

892,850 Investment carried at FVOCI    
Financial assets  202,799,185  58,221,608  70,158,304  74,419,273 
        
Other payables and accruals 3,872,374  3,872,374  -  - 
Due to related party 107,671  107,671  -  - 
Financial facilities 99,268,837  9,102,286  31,898,482  58,268,069 
Financial liabilities 103,248,882  13,082,331  31,898,482  58,268,069 
        
Maturity gap 99,550,303  45,139,277  38,259,822  16,151,204 

Cumulative maturity gap   45,139,277  83,399,099  99,550,303 
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28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 
 

28.5. Capital risk management 
 

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it 
can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain a strong capital base 
to support the sustained development of its business. 
 
The Company's capital structure consists of net debt (financial facilities as detailed in Note 21 off-set by cash and bank 
balances) and equity of the Company. The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base well above the minimum 
requirements to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.  
 
Further, the Company monitors the aggregate amount of financing offered by the Company on the basis of the regulatory 
requirements of SAMA. SAMA requires Finance Companies engaged in financing other than real estate, to maintain 
aggregate financing to capital ratio of three times. 
 

 As at 31 December 
 2020 2019 
Leverage Ratio 2.05 times 1.94 times 
(Net investment in Islamic financing before provision divided by total equity)   

 

29. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 
 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 

market participants at the measurement date. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company 
is a going concern and there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a 
transaction on adverse terms. 

  
A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from 
an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and 
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. 
 
When measuring the fair value, the Company uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized 
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 
 
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that can be accessed at the 
measurement date 
 
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., 
as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). 
 
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). 
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29. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Islamic financing, 
restricted cash deposits and other receivables, its financial liabilities consist of trade payables, financial facilities, due to 
related party and other liabilities.  
 

non-recurring measurement 
 
All financial assets and liabilities are measured at amortized cost except investment carried at FVOC. The carrying amounts 
of all other financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost approximate to their fair values. 
 

As at 31 December 2020 
Fair value 

Level 
1 2 3 Total 

FINANCIAL ASSET     

FVOCI designated     

Investment carried at FVOCI - - 892,850 892,850 
 

As at 31 December 2019 
Fair value 

Level 
1 2 3 Total 

FINANCIAL ASSET     

FVOCI designated     

Investment carried at FVOCI - - 892,850 892,850 
 

The above financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following 
table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined: 

 
 

Financial assets / financial 
liabilities 

Valuation 
technique(s) and 

key input(s) 

Significant 
unobservable 

input(s) 

Relationship and sensitivity of 
unobservable inputs to fair 

value 
Investment carried at FVOCI Cost N/A N/A 
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30. ISLAMIC FINANCING RECEIVABLES  SERVICING AND SECURITY AGENCY AGREEMENTS 

 
In accordance with the terms of servicing and security agency agreement, the Company has transferred certain Islamic 
financing receivables to the Parent Company. The Company does not retain the risk and reward associated with such 
receivables. 
 
The Company continues to manage these derecognized Islamic financing receivables as a servicer and security agent in 
accordance with the agency agreements entered into with the Parent Company. The Company is continuing to manage 
these sold receivables for an agreed fee which is netted-off with the related cost of servicing these Islamic financing 
receivables sold to Parent Company. 
 
The outstanding position of such off statement of financial position Islamic financing receivables is as follows: 
 

  As at 31 December 

  2020  2019 

     

Islamic financing receivables transferred to the parent company  22,260,688   22,391,244  
 

31. RECLASSIFICATION OF PRIOR YEAR FIGURES 
Certain comparative information has been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. 
 

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
There have been no significant subsequent events since the year-end that require disclosure or adjustment in these financial 
statements 
 

33. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE 
These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on April 8, 2021 (corresponding to 26 Shabaan 1442H) 
by the Board of Directors of the Company.  


